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From: Jessee, Michael 
To: Underground Safety Enforcement 
Subject: Case # 22LA01484 - Frontier Communications Notice of Probable Violation 
Date: Tuesday, June 14, 2022 1:52:21 PM 
Attachments: NOPV Signed Frontier Communications 22LA01484.pdf 

You don't often get email from msj822@ftr.com. Learn why this is important 

To members of the Board: 

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the Notice of Probable Violation dated May 6. In 
that Notice, the Board investigator is recommending “a financial penalty, the amount to be 
determined by the Board,” at the Board’s next public meeting on July 11, 2022. Frontier 
apologies for the series of events which result in the incomplete of facilities, but respectfully 
requests that the Board does not issue a financial penalty or, alternatively, issue a penalty not 
to exceed $1,000. 

The Notice explains, “the proposed sanction is merited, as Frontier did not respond to the 
excavator until after the excavator made a ‘no response’ notification to the one-call center, 
provided an incorrect electronic positive response, and failed to cooperate with the 
investigation.” Among other things, the Notice states that Frontier “provided an incorrect 
electronic positive response notification on January 10, 2022, indicating that it did not have 
subsurface installations in the excavation area, though it would respond the next day that the 
area was partially marked.” 

Frontier has discussed this matter with its contractor, Utiliquest, who explained its technician 
did, in fact, respond to the January 10 “meet and mark request” but that no representative 
from Merlin Johnson appeared for the meet. The technician began marking the delineated 
area, but soon realized the job was too big to mark alone. The technician then called the 
excavator to let him know he had started but needed to come back. While still on site, the 
technician received a "no show" ticket, which created a duplicate ticket in the technician’s 
workload, i.e., he had the original ticket as well as the "no show" ticket. Since the technician 
already began marking the original ticket and also spoke with the excavator, he thought the 
"no show" ticket didn't apply to him. Therefore, for administrative purposes, he closed the 
duplicate "no show" ticket as "no conflict." 

Regarding Frontier’s failure to cooperate with the investigation by not responding to Board’s 
letter dated February 10, Frontier rarely receives such letters—in fact, we are not aware of 
receiving such a letter in years—and it “fell between the cracks.” Frontier realizes this is not 
acceptable, and has instituted a practice where any such notice, when received by Frontier, is 
to be routed to a specific person with responsibility to respond timely. 

Again, Frontier apologies for its actions (and inactions) in this matter. 
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May 6, 2022 


NOTICE OF PROBABLE VIOLATION 
 


Frontier Communications 
401 Merrit 7 
Norwalk, CT 06851 
 
Agent For Service Company Which will do Business in California as 
CSC – Lawyers Incorporating Service 
251 Little Falls Drive 
Wilmington, DE 19808 
 
Case No.: 22LA01484 
Address/Location of Violations: Noble Creek Park, Beaumont, CA 92223 
Date/Time of Violations: January 10-27, 2022  
 
Dear Sir or Madam: 


You are receiving this Notice of Probable Violation (Notice) as a result of an investigation pursuant to 
Government Code sections 4216 et seq. The California Underground Safety Board (Board) investigator 
has concluded an investigation of an incident on January 10-27, 2022, in Beaumont, and found that 
there is a probable violation of Article 2 of Chapter 3.1 of Division 5 of Title 1 of the California 
Government Code. The probable violations are:   
 
4216.3(a)(1)(A) Unless the excavator and operator mutually agree to a later start date and time, or 


otherwise agree to the sequence and timeframe in which the operator will locate and 
field mark, an operator shall do one of the following before the legal excavation start 
date and time: (i) locate and field mark within the area delineated for excavation and, 
where multiple subsurface installations of the same type are known to exist together, 
mark the number of subsurface installations, (ii) to the extent and degree of accuracy 
that the information is available, provide information to an excavator where the 
operator’s active or inactive subsurface installations are located, or (iii) advise the 
excavator it operates no subsurface installations in the area delineated for excavation. 
 


4216.3(c)(1)(A)   On and after January 1, 2021, every operator shall supply an electronic positive 
response through the regional notification center before the legal excavation start date 
and time. Upon a showing of good cause by an operator, the board may extend the 
time by which the operator is required to comply with this requirement. The board 
shall not grant an extension beyond December 31, 2021. 
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On January 5, 2022, Merlin Johnson Construction was issued ticket B220050037-00B by DigAlert. 
Frontier did not complete locate and mark activities in the area until January 27, 2022, sixteen days 
after the legal excavation start date and time of January 10, 2022, in violation of Government Code 
Section 4216.3 (a)(1)(A). Frontier provided an incorrect electronic positive response notification on 
January 10, 2022, indicating that it did not have subsurface installations in the excavation area, though 
it would respond the next day that the area was partially marked. Frontier again provided an incorrect 
electronic positive response on January 20, 2022, when it indicated that the locate area was marked, 
when it had not been marked. These incorrect electronic positive responses are in violation of 
Government Code Section 4216.3 (c)(1)(A). Frontier also failed to cooperate with the investigation, in 
violation of Section 4151 of Title 19 of the California Code of Regulations. 
 
Hearing 
 
The Board will hear and vote on your case at its next public meeting on July 11, 2022, at 1:00 p.m. in 
Sacramento.  
 
During the meeting, the Board will review and consider the Investigation Report and exhibits, this 
Notice, and any other explanation or records you submit, and the Board will determine whether 
violations exist and whether the penalty (such as corrective action, education course, or monetary 
penalty) proposed by the Board investigator is appropriate. At this meeting, you may contest the 
violations, proposed penalty noted in the below section, and any new or adjusted penalty issued during 
the meeting by the Board. This will be your only opportunity to contest the violations and any penalty.   
 
Should the Board determine that the violations occurred, the Board will make a final determination on 
your case with either the proposed penalty below, or a new or adjusted penalty.  
 
The Board will notify you of its final determination following its public meeting.  
 
 
Proposed Penalty 
 
Any penalties provided in this Notice, including corrective actions, are only proposals by Board 
investigator and do not require any corrective action or payment at this time. The Board will provide 
the final determination to and instructions for any penalty after the above-referenced public meeting.  
 
Pursuant to Government Code section 4216.6, violation of Government Code, Title 1, Article 2, Chapter 
3.1, Division 5 (Sections 4216 et seq.) may be subject to a maximum penalty of $10,000 for negligent 
violation, or $50,000 for knowing and willful violation. Knowing and willful violation of Article 2 that 
results in damage to a gas or hazardous liquid pipeline subsurface installation and that results in the 
escape of any flammable, toxic, or corrosive gas or liquid may be subject to a maximum penalty of 
$100,000.  
 
The Board investigator is recommending the below penalty:  
 
A financial penalty, the amount to be determined by the Board, is being recommended at this time. 
 
The proposed sanction is merited, as Frontier did not respond to the excavator until after the 
excavator made a “no response” notification to the one-call center, provided an incorrect electronic 
positive response, and failed to cooperate with the investigation. While the violations did not cause 
death or substantial injury, environment or property damage, and while the respondent does not 
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have a history of violations as determined through Board action, a financial penalty is warranted as 
Frontier failed to cooperate with the investigation, including by failing to provide information that 
may have determined whether Frontier contractors operated in compliance with Gov’t Code Section 
4216 et seq. and by failing to provide information that could have indicated whether Frontier acted 
expeditiously in attempting to mitigate the safety consequences of the violation. 


 


Response to this Notice 


Enclosed as part of this Notice is a document titled RESPONSE TO A NOTICE OF PROBABLE 
VIOLATION. Please carefully review this document and note the response options. All material you 
submit in response to this enforcement action are subject to public disclosure. 


You have 30 business days from the date of this Notice to submit your written response to the Board. 
Your response to this notice must be received by the Board no later than June 20. 2022. 


If you do not respond within 30 business days, this constitutes a waiver of your right to contest the 
Board’s final determination on whether there is a probable violation and to impose a penalty in this 
case.  


Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jason Corsey 
Chief of Investigations 
 


Proposed hearing date: July 11, 2022  
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RESPONSE TO A NOTICE OF PROBABLE VIOLATION  
 


      Case Number: 22LA01484 
    Name:  Frontier Communications 


 
The provisions of California Code of Regulations, Title 19, Division 4, Chapter 3, governs the Notice of 
Probable Violation (Notice) proceeding before the California Underground Safety Board (Board). 
Specifically, 19 CCR 4252 provides your response options upon the receipt of a Notice.  


Be advised that all material submitted by you in response to a Notice are subject to public disclosure.  


Please select from one of the response options listed below. You have 30 business days to submit your 
written response to the Underground Safety Board. Failure to submit a written response will be 
considered by the Board as a “No Contest” response. Please attach this form with your selection to your 
response. If you choose “Contest in Writing” or “Contest in Writing and Request Informal Hearing,” 
please also include your written explanation and any documents that may be referenced in your written 
explanation or informal hearing. For all options, with the exception of an Office of Administrative Law 
hearing, the Board will review your case, and Board members will vote to determine whether a violation 
exists and issue a penalty at the meeting. 


Response Options 


___ No Contest 
You do not contest the violations or the penalty. If you choose to not contest the violations or the 
penalty, you will waive your right to request the Board to reconsider its decision or recommendation 
issued.   


___ Contest in Writing 
You wish to contest either the violation, the penalty, or both by providing the Board with written 
explanations and other records supporting the explanation. Your will submit the written explanations 
and records, if any, with your written response within 30 business days of receiving this Notice. Your 
response must not exceed 10 pages (excluding exhibits) in length and must be on 8.5” x 11” white paper, 
double-spaced, and in a font size no smaller than 11-point. You must submit the original and 12 physical 
copies of the written explanation and records to the address below, or submit one (1) copy electronically 
to enforcement.dig@energysafety.ca.gov. You may request an extension to the page limit by submitting 
a request to the Board staff within 5 days of receiving this Notice. The Board staff will notify you of its 
determination with respect to the page limit extension request, within 10 days of you submitting the 
request. The Board will take action on your case within 60 days of receiving your written response or at 
the next meeting in which a quorum of the Board is present. 


___ Contest in Writing and Request Informal Hearing 
You wish to contest either the violation, the penalty, or both with oral argument at an informal hearing 
during a public Board meeting. You will submit with your written response, written explanations, 
information, or other materials you wish to reference in your oral hearing. Your response must not 
exceed 10 pages (excluding exhibits) in length and must be on 8.5” x 11” white paper, double-spaced, 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 9856DEB9-C002-462E-91E2-F232BC6B7F38



mailto:enforcement.dig@energysafety.ca.gov





 
and in a font size no smaller than 11-point. You must submit the original and 12 physical copies of the 
written explanation and records to the address below, or submit one (1) copy electronically to 
enforcement.dig@energysafety.ca.gov. 


Your hearing, conducted pursuant to Section 4253 of Title 19 of the California Code of Regulations, 
would be during the public meeting noted in the Notice, on July 11, 2022, at 1:00 p.m. in Sacramento. 
Please note that your oral hearing may not start exactly at the time provided as there may be multiple 
hearing during one Board meeting. You may request to reschedule your hearing no later than 15 
business days from your hearing date. Your request to reschedule a hearing may be granted no more 
than once and only for good cause.  


You may participate in person or through a virtual meeting platform. You will have 15 minutes to present 
your reasons for contesting the allegation or reasons that may support a modification or elimination of 
the penalty or corrective action. You will be granted up to 15 minutes to respond to the Notice and up to 
5 minutes to respond to any Board staff rebuttal. You may arrange, at your expense, for a stenographer 
or court reporter to transcribe the informal hearing. You must provide a copy of any transcription to the 
Board. 


The Board will issue a decision at,  


• The informal hearing;  
• Thereafter within 45 business days of the informal hearing; or  
• At a subsequent Board public meeting where a quorum of the Board is present.  


The Board will adopt the issued written decision at the hearing or a subsequent public meeting. The 
Board’s decision is effective upon the adoption of the written decision.  


___ Request A Formal Hearing Before the Office of Administrative Law 
You wish to contest either the violation, the penalty, or both in a hearing before the Office of 
Administrative Law rather than before the Board. The hearing shall be conducted pursuant to chapters 
4.5 and 5 of part 1 of division 3 of title 2 of the Government Code (commencing with sections 11400 and 
11500) and California Code of Regulations, title 1, section 1000 et seq. The Board shall act on the 
administrative law judge's proposed decision in accordance with Government Code section 11517, 
subdivision (c). 


 


Board Contact Information: 


Please direct all formal correspondence, including your written response to the Notice, to the Board 
either via email at enforcement.dig@energysafety.ca.gov or via mail to the following address: 


Office of Energy Infrastructure Safety 
   Underground Safety Board 


    715 P St., 20th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
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Please provide your written response within 30 business days of receiving this Notice. If a response is 
provided via mail, the mailed response must be received by the Board within 30 business days. 
 


Penalties 


Any penalties, including corrective actions, are only proposals by the Board investigator, and do not 
require any current corrective action or payment at this time. The Board will provide the final 
determination to and instructions for any penalty. Please do not include any proof of compliance with 
proposed corrective actions or payment of a proposed penalty with your written response. 


 


ADA Compliance 


The California Underground Safety Board complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) by 
ensuring that the facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities, and providing this Notice and 
information given to the members of the California Underground Safety Board in appropriate alternate 
formats when requested. If you need further assistance, including disability-related modifications or 
accommodations, you may contact the California Safety Board no later than seven (7) calendar days 
before a scheduled hearing at (916) 767-3370. California Relay Service is available by dialing 711. 
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Sincerely, 

Mike Jessee 
Director, Operations 
(626) 201-0091 

This communication is confidential. Frontier only sends and receives email on the basis of 
the terms set out at http://www.frontier.com/email_disclaimer. 

http://www.frontier.com/email_disclaimer

